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"A Piece of Justice.

Forewor)

There are potentially o than four willion wigrant workers from Burma in Thailand. The
wajority are not aware that their [abour rigbts are protected under the Thai fega[ system. As a result )
most of these workers are exploited by employers who vegularly flaunt the law by failing to pay wages,
violating minimmm wage and overtine regulations ) and providing unsafe working and living conditions.
The few who are aware of the legal protections are often afraid to take any action because they believe
it will vesult in deportation or imprisonment. However ) wiigrants are increasingly taking a stand and
exercising their rigbts.

Since 2002, MAP Foundation, also know as Migrant Assistance Program, has been
helping migrant workers take legal action to protect their [abour rights. One of the wain roadblocks in
achieving this goal is the lack of knowledge among the wigrant population about their rights and how to
access the {egal system aid. To befp alleviate this wo{)[em , MAP has De"ue{opeb educational waterials to
show that protection under the law is available to all.

This handbook serves to provide velatable examples of veal stories where wigrant workers
have sought legal vecourse against exploitation and have been successful. The aim is to educate other
migrant workers about the {egal process and show that not on{;g are tbey entitled to protection under the
law, but that they can be successful in their pursuit of justice.

By educating wore wigrant workers about their rights ) MAP hopes that an increasing
number of workers will stand up and take action against unfair conditions ) seiting an example to their
peers and employers that the exploitation of wiigrant workers will not be tolerated.
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"A Piece of Justice.'

If We Don't Try, We'll Never Know

Miamo migrated from
Mawlamyine, Burma. In
Burma, she had worked on
a farm. Because of her
family’s poverty, she
decided to follow a friend's
recommendation to work
at a factory in Mae Sof,
Thailand. Unfortunately,
she and her 33 friends
were fired from the factory.
They filed a claim for
compensation at the Labor
Protection Office and
received 832,431.48 baht.

Miamo was at a local bazaar htying dotpes
Jfor berself and fer parents mho were still living in
Burma. She had an appointmnent with éer dose /‘r/'em)/
who works at a z)iﬁfereﬂt /7/&16'8 ﬁam Yer. Both 0/ them
had the day off and enjoyed hanging ont and shopping
l‘oye[éer.

“Miamo”

“Hil Tucha. Today you brouglf\’r Techi with

you.”

“Ves, my sister just crossed the border over to
Mae Sot this morning, so J asked her to come
hang out with us.”

“Hi, Techi. How have you been? Vou have

grown up so fast. Did you come here to work?”
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“Ves, J want to work here so J can

SeV\C{ money back I’\OW\e”

“That's great. Work hard! Are you
going to live with Tucha?”

”Of course, J got a job at the same

place as her.”

“That's good. It you need any help,

feel fv*ee to call me anytime.”

“Vou know Miamo once filed a claim
at the Office of Labor Protection and
we'fav‘e and received compensation
]Cv*om hewr ex—employer who had fiv*ecl
her without notice. We can consult her

about labor laws.”

Really? But, what is that about? J

know V\o’rl/\ihg about the law”

“TJ will leave you two to talk about it.
Miamo, can you take care of my sister

fov* mes”
“No problem.”

Tucha went to the toilet, and Miamo

looked for a place to sit down and

tallk with Techi.

“Techi, we should go have some
khanomjeen over there and talk about

the law.”

Miamo and Techi walked to a V\earby

klf\ahomjeen stall and sat down.

”YOMjms’r asked what the law is, wigl/n‘?
So, let me explaim. The law is set of

rules which olefine what our riglf\’rs are
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and what kind of protection we are
entitled to. J have some experience
about labour law that J can share with

you.”

“What is labour law?”

“Labour law is a set of regulations
which define the v*iglm‘s ](ov‘ anyone who
works. For example, labour law says
that if youwr employew abuses or takes
advan’rage of you, such as refusihg to
pay your wages, you have the wiglf\’r
to sue and request the employer to

pay the wages they owe you.”

“That's good to know. My mother was
very worried that my work would be
bad because she had heard stories
of many uw\lu\cky people who have
been taken aclvan’rage o]c — getting no
money fow their work or |ivivx9 in an
ovewpopmla’red house with no tap
water and elecﬁ*ich‘y. At fi rst, J didn't
feel cow\fov"rable about coming to work

here.”
“So why did you decide to come?”

“J just wanted to have a chance for a
better Iife. Theve is no chance back
athome. We can’t earn enomg'r\ to live.
Our paddy field and farms just don't
PVOdMCe el/\omglf\ fOOCI fOV a” Of MS-”

“Same here. J decided to come to
work here for the sake of my family.
J also used to live in a cv*aw\pecl house

like you described.”

Really?”




“Ves. Jtwas actually worse than that!
They let us use tap water and
electricity only until 111 p.m. Jf some
days we worked overtime until around
9 p.m., +lf\ey would allow us to use
electricity until midnigl'\’r. Jt was very
+ou9|/\ fov* us because we had to hurvy
to take a bath befov*e the water turned

Oﬁ'”
“Do you still work at that place now?¢”

“Not anymore. Jt was with this
employer that we filed a claim for
severance pay because Hr\ey fiwec' us

without proper compensation.”

“J +|/\ou9|/\’r when we are ]Ci red, we are
fired and can't get anything. J have
never heard that we are entitled to

severance PQY . 4

“We do

compensation if we are fiv*ecl without

have v*ig'x\’rs to get
prior notice. J also just learned that

last time when J was fired.”
“How did you fincl out about it then?”

”Sfaﬁ fv*ow\ VCOWA and MAP told
me. My fv‘iehcls and J consulted them
when we were laid oﬁ. And they also
have Burmese people WOwking there.
They told us about our rights as a
worker and that we can choose to
exercise ounr v*iglm‘s to claim fov*

compensation.”

“We can choose to exercise our
riglx\fs?"

"A Piece of Justice."

”yes, it is up to us. MAP S’ra]cf and
Yaung Chi Oo can only give us the
infowma’rion and help as needed, but
we had to decide whether or not to

seek protection under the law”

“That means we have to do evevyi’l'\ing

ourselves, doesn't ite”

“Ves, because it is our rights so we
have to exercise them on our own. J
got the payment because J chose to
fight through the justice system.”

“This is the firs’r time J have heard
that migrant workers like us can win

a lawsuit against a Thai employer.”

“Ves, we can. J wouldn't know if J
hadn't tried. However, my case did
not even get to the court because it
ended before that. J filed a claim at
the Labor Protection oﬁice, and then

J received my money.”
“Why were you fired anyway?”

“Tt was because my friends and J
av*guecl with the supervisor, who went
to tell the facfovy owner and said that
we were stubborn and were likely to
lead other workers to demonstrate.
Two months aﬁew that, the supervisor
told the owner that we were about to
cause chaos in the factory. The owner
then fired us. He claimed that they had
warned everyone that if he/she was

about to organise a strike, he/she

would be fiv‘ecl.”

“What did you do then?”
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“We consulted Yaung Chi Oo. When
we learned about our v*igll\fs, we filecl
the Kor Row 7 ]Cow/v\ at the Labor
Protection Oﬁice.”

“What is the KorRowr 72’

“Jt is a form which contains
informa+ion about us incluo’ing who we
are, who we have worked for, why
we are making a claim, what the claim
is for and how much money we are
owed. But the form is written in Thai.
So, we needed s’raff from MATP or
Yaung Chi Oo to help translate.”

“Ts the fov*w\ available in Burmese

now?¢”

“Not yeth Since the Labor Protection
oﬁicev‘s are all Thai it has to be written
in Thai fov* them to be able to read it.
But, the situation is getting better.
There used to be no branch ofﬁce heve
but now they have opened one in Mae
Sot. Because there are a lot of cases
with us Burmese migrant workers,
+|/\ey realized that an oﬁice in Mae
Sotis necessary. The oﬁice even has

Burmese-Thai interpreting staff.”

“Wow! Vour figl/\’r really l/\elpecl to

make a c[f\ahge.”

“That's v*iglm‘. One person may not be
able to achieve much. But when we
unite we can definitely make changes

fov* the beter.”

“How many people were fired
+oge+|/\ev* with you and did Hf\ey all get
paide”

6 No Migrant Worker is Ilegal

"A Piece of Justice.

“There were 33 people and we all
got compensated. But even if it is only
one person, he/she is entitled to

N ”
compensation.

“Did you get the money right after
fi”ing the KorRor 7 form?”

“We had to wait for awhile. In order
to fo”ow the oﬁ(ice’s procedures it
takes some time. 7Z\f+ev~ waiting for
awhile, the office informed us that they
ordered the
compensate us. We then received the
money. J was paid 250,000 baht.”

ex—employer to

“That is gv*ec\f.”

“Ves. So, from now on, if any migrants
are fi red without prior notice, Hf\ey can
request the employer directly for
severance pay. J have done it, and

”
so can others.

“While you were waiting for the

money, could you work?”

Ves. But, my friends who were the
leaders among us couldn’t find a job
because the ex—boss showed their
pl/\o+os to oH/\ev* employev‘s and told
them not to hire them. The rest of us
workers had to 'f\elp them. When we
earned money we shared it with them.
We knew that without them we
wouldnt have been strong enouglf\ to

fig'm‘ fov* compensaﬁon.”

“Were there any other pwoblems for
them apart fv‘om finding a new job?”




”_Clz\e ex—boss sent someone to Hf\rem‘en
to hurt them if they didn't drop the
case. But they were not afraid. My
friend told them that the employer
could do whatever he pleasecl but we
were not going to stop figlf\’rir/\g. We
wanted other employers to see that
workers can make a claim fov* our

v*iglm‘s when we are exploH'ed.”

“J'm so Iucky you shaved youwr story

with me.”

“Gladly. J also want to let other
workers know that ’r[/\ey have to unite.
J]C we are exploh‘ecl by ouwr employem
we have to get ’roge’r'r\ev* to figl/\’r ](ov‘
our wiglm‘s. We can't let them take
aclvan’rage of us or else ’rhey will
continue to treat us more and more

unfaiwly.”

“J just started wov‘king so J don't
know much about w0v~l<in9 and |ivin9
here. When you first started, how
much did you get paid?”

“J earned 30 baht for every dozen
pieces J made. J once comp'e’recl Six
dozen in one day and J was very
L\appy. But, some days J could make
less and had to stay up until late to

rewonrk rej ected pieces J

“How was the environment? Was it

900Cl2”

“Some places are good but some
arent. J think that if we want a good
working environment, we have to

negotiate with the employer.”

"A Piece of Justice."

“What do you think is a good WOv*king

environmente”

“Well, everything about the wovkplace
should be appropriate for the workers
as human beings. For example, the
WOV‘I—(iV\g hours should be appropviate,
not too lovxg. The place should be safe
and clean. We should have enoug'/\
holiday and receive reasonable
wages. J'm intervested in this issue and
will keep s’ru\dying it to learn more. Jf
J learn any’rlf\ing new and interesting,

T will let you know.”

“Thank you. So, do you think we can
really demand a better working

environment? Do you think it will

work?”

“Definitely. Remember we were
su\ccessful in getting compensation.
We need to stick ’roge’rlf\ev*, be patient
and brave, and the fig[f\’r for ounr wiglr\’rs
will surely pay off. The question is:

are we brave enoug'x\ to start?d”
“Can J take pavt in your figlm‘ too?”

“Sure, for the rights of workers like
us. Lets do it ‘rogeﬂf\ev*."

“Ves, let's do it!”

Tucha came back to join their
chitchatting. They all enjoyed eating
khahomjeen ’roge’r'/\ev* and continued

talking cheerfully.
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It's Only 20 Baht but It's Still Our Money

Muang is a migrant worker from
Kholum Township in Shan State,
Burma. Back home he was a
farmer, which was an insecure
livelihood based on the weather
and market prices. Therefore he
decided to move to Thailand in
search of better career
opportunities. The first work he
found was as a hired—hand in
farms near the border. Then he
got a job with a construction
company in Chiang Mai, that
contracted him to work in Phuket
Province. The company paid his
travel expenses but then part of
his salary was deducted by the
employer as a guarantee that he
would fulfill his contract. He was
told that this money would be
returned to him when the job
was completed. However, in the
end the employer did not keep
the promise. Therefore, Muang
and his colleagues decided to take
this matter up with the Office of
Labour Protection and Welfare.
Eventually, all 35 employees
received the total payment of

157,340 baht.

At a construction site, a growp of workers
enjoy a break after their lunch. Jingna, mho learned
that Muang and pis friends pad taken legal action to
gt an emplayer o pay compensation for nrpaid wages,
started a conversation with Muang

“Hj ]\/\mang. Come sit with us.”
“Hi there. What's the matter?”

“We heard that you successfully got your wages
back frow\ the emp]oyev* H/\v‘ougl/\ the legal
process. Can you tell us how you did that?”

“Well, befov‘e J came to work here, my fov‘w\er
employev‘ deducted some of our wages, and
promisecl to pay me and my co”eagues when
the whole work was complefreol. We asked ]Cov*
the money but the employer ignov‘ecl us. So we
decided to talk to the Labour Protection Oﬁice

and we fina”y got the money.”

“Wow! Could you explain move in detail because
J have no idea how migrant workers like us

are able to use the law to |:7|/*o1‘ec1L ounr v‘iglm‘s?”

“Sure. At that time, my friends and J were
working for a very big construction company
here in le\iang Mai. Then, they were contracted
to build an aivport in Phuket, and they took about
70 of us to work there. The employew said he
would keep 20 baht from our daily wage
everyday. He described it as a kind of

”
guarantee.

“Guarantee? Guarantee fov* whate”
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“He said it was to make sure that all
of us would work until all of the
construction was ](ilr\iSI’\eCl. Maybe he
was afv*aid we would leave fov* a better

job de*ing the construction.”

“T think it would be beter if there had
been some kind of insurance policy
fov* us instead, you know, someﬂf\ing

that ensures we are Safe at work.”
“Veah. That would be good.”

“Anyways, what happened after
that?”

"Rig[t\’f. As J've told you that 20 baht
of ounr daily wage was collected as a
guarantee. But if we worked overtime
ow if we worked a double Sl/\iﬁ, more

money was deducted.”

“And you said younr employev‘ did not

return the money. Do you know why?”

“He told us that we would get the
money a](’rev* the construction was
finislr\ed. As J remembered, we spent
almost a year working there. After
the work was finislx\ecl, we were taken
back to le\iang Mai. Duw*ihg that time,
some of us asked him about the
payment but he said he had no money

at the moment and told us to wait.”

“So how long did you wait fov* the

money?”

“Around six months, J think. Every
time we asked him about the money,

he just kepf fe”ing us to wait.”
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“But he didnt get angry about that or
fire you, right?”

“Well, he didn't do that div‘ecﬂy. Some
of us couldn’t stand it and decided to

leave.”
Really? Why, what did he do?”

“We were moved into new I/\ousihg
affev* that, but there was no water
sv\pply onr elec’rriciiy there. And new
employees started living in the place
we had erayed befov*e. Jt was too
much for us. That's why some decided
to quit. However, the rest of us,
inc'mding me, decided to hang on,

I/\oping to get the paymem‘."

“How much did the guarantee amount

to?”

”Alfogeflr\ev‘ ]Cov* 70 of us. J think it
came to around 700,000 baht.”

“What? That's nearly a million baht!
And was it the amount the same fov‘
female workers?” asked a female

who had joinecl the

conversation.

WOV‘I—(GV‘

“Veah, it was the same for both male

and female workers.”

“Did they get the same wage?” asked

the female worker.,

“No. Men were paid more than

women.”

“That's not faiv‘. Both man and women

work hard; the women are paid less,




but have the equal amount deducted
fov‘ gu\av‘am‘ee." The other female

worker argued.

Right. If the wages were equal, there
would be more income for the family,”

another female worker added.

“If T knew about labor rights, J would
have known that both female and male
workers are equ\a”y entitled to earn

the minimum wage."

“That would be even better ifwa would

have been paid the minimum wage.”
“And what do we do to get e’

“TJt totally depends on all of us. We
need to get united against such unfaiv‘
treatment and of course, be patient,
J believe that we will be able to

achieve justice one day.”
“What makes you so confic'eh’r?”

“Because my fv‘iends and J took legal

action once and we got our money

bClC'-(-”

“Veah, you're right. So, what
happenec’ aﬁ'er the six months of

wai’ring?”

“Oh, J forgot to tell you one thing. Jt's
not only some employees who got
fv*ush/‘a’red and quit the job. Some
leaders of the workers were firecl.
So 35 people who had been fiv*ecl got
+oge’r|/\er and decided to get some
advice fv*om MATP Foundation.”

"A Piece of Justice."

“‘MATP? TJve heard that they work
with migrant workers. How did they
help you?”

“Well, they explained the rigl/\’rs of
migrant workers to us. Also they

smgges’red that we submit a complain+

to the Oﬁice of L abour Protection and
Welfare, v*iglzﬁ here in le\iang Mai.
So we did just that, and a]cl'ev‘ fouw* owr
five days, ’rl/\ey called us in to discuss

a setlement with the employew.”
“Just four or five days? That's fast!”

“Veah, we didnt expect it to be that
quick. Anyways, in the first meeting
with the employer, we did not reach

a setlement.”
//W[,\XQ//

“Because he refused to pay the total
amount we'd v‘equ\es’recl. So another

meeting was scheduled.”
“How much did you guys demand?”

“Around 200,000 baht. Tt was fov* 35

workers.”

“Wow! J¥s a
accmmu\la’ring from just 20 baht per

I/\v\ge amount
day per worker. And did you get the

money this time?”

”Yealf\, we did, but less than the
Veqmesfed 200,000 baht. J remembenr
we received exactly 157,340 baht.”

No Human Being is Tlegal PR



“J would like to know what the
negotiation was like. Did you get paid
immediately after you made the deal?”

“The talk involved the employev‘ and
us, and was mediated by oﬁicials fv*ow\
the Oﬁice of L abour Protection and
Welfav‘e. In the fi rst meeting, we said
we expec’recl to be paid 200,000 baht
but the employer refused. Since we
couldn’t come to a resolution in the
fiv‘sf meeting, a second negotiation

was sclf\eclv\led -”

“How many days did the second talk
happen aﬁev‘ the fiv*sf?”

“N ot |on9, only six days after the first
talk. This time, the employer agreed
to pay the sum of 157,340 baht.
However, he said he didnt have
enough cash, and had to pay in six
installments. We v*efu\secl it at fiv‘sf
because we pwefew‘ed the whole
amount in one payment.
Mnfor’runa+e|y, the employew insisted
he could not aﬁov‘cl that so, we had to
accept it. And we all got paid

aﬁerwawds."

“Tell me, how did you come up with
the amount for 200,000 baht?”

“Actually, we stated such amount o]c
money in the KorRor 7 form we had
to fi” at the O]Cfice. We had to provide
pev‘sonal imfov‘maﬁon and work
inforw\aﬁon such as the kind ofjob and
employev"s name. We had to declarve
the reasons we wanted to submit this

request, and the parficular amount of
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money we were demanding. Jt was
here that we had to remember the
exact details of the money they
deducted, such as the pev‘ioc’ and how
many times they deducted, and how
much at a time. We calculated how
much each of us would get back, and
it added up to about 200,000 baht”

IIJ Se,e,.”

“And why didn't you get the entire
200,000 baht finally? Jsn't that the
amount of money you all should have

been paid?”

“We wished we could get the entive
amount, but we didn't have Su\]cficien’r
evidence against the employer. That
was wl'\y we agv‘eecl to the reduced

amount, which is better than V\o’r'/\ing.”

“So that means we should keep
evidence now, in case we will need it

in the fm’rmv‘e.”

";Z\bsolu\fely. Atleast, you should keep
a vecord about younr employer and the
company you've been working for.
%gain, your w0v*l<in9 pwofile such as
the start date of work also needs to
be recorded, ’roge’rl/\ev* with your wage
per cla)_/, the OT payment rate, the
holiday and even the deposits.”

“This is very useful information for us,
indeed. Thank you for letting us knows

what our wiglf\’rs are.”

“With pleasv\we. ;Z\c’rua”y, certain

groups of migrant wovkers in Cl/\iang
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Mai have been fov‘mecl. Sometimes, “That's greaH J¥s a goocl opportunity
theve are Msefml talks about the legal to learn more. We wont be taken
¢i9|/\+s of migrant workers. Jll let you advanfage of anymove.”

know when the next talkk will be.”
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They Blame Us

Mei Sa is a migrant worker
from Burma. Originally from
Yangon, her income was
insufficient because the
economy had been bad, and so
she and her husband came to
work in Thailand. They began
working for a factory in
Bangkok. Then, after the
factory laid them off they had
to look for a new job. They
kept moving from place to place
because either they were
dismissed or the employer paid
a very low wage. Eventually
they moved to work in a
factory in Mae Sot. The
employer here also paid an
extremely low wage, which
caused the workers to strike.
These workers were later
dismissed. They took legal
action and filed a claim with
the Office of Labor Protection
and Welfare who ordered their
them

employer to pay

termination compensation.

No Migrant Worker is Ilegal

After work, Mei Sa stopped to have
kbanomchin (vermicelli) and fried peas before
going howe. Her lusband was visiting family in
Burma. She did not join him because she wanted to
save wioney and was planning to visit Burma
with him ouring New Years break. When she was
finishing up, she was greeted by one of her long
[ost friends.

“Mei Sa, great to see you here!”
“Ma _[:vmg Sal How have you been?”

“T'mn good. J have a child now, how about
you?”

“J'm fine, but no child yet. It J collect enough
money J plom to go back home. J want to
have a child once J'm more fimar/\cia”y
secure. Are you working here? Js anyone

taking care of your child for you?”

”MY husband’s parents are. He is fv*om
Myawaddy. J¥s not too fav* so we can go

home quite oﬁen."

“Good for you. My house is very far away;

we can't go home very often.”

“By the way, J heard that you and your
husband went to the Oﬁcice of L abor
Protection and welfav‘e. Js that true?”

“Ves. We and our coworkers at the factory

went to file a complain’r.”




“Did you get any money?”
“Of course.”

“J have oﬁem heard stories about
Burmese labor strikes and +al<in9
legal action fov*jusﬁce at the Oﬁice of
Labor Welfare and Protection or that
some migrants even go to court.
Unfortunately T never hear the stories
in much detail. Can you tell me your
story’ and what you did there? +How
did it all begin?”

“Well my husband and J wevre
working in a sewing factory at the
time. They gave us a very low salary,
and sometimes there was no
assignment for us at all. So we got

+oge’rlf\ev* and tried to negotiate with
the boss.”

“Can workers like us negotiate with

the employer. 4

“Ves we can. Jf we feel that the
WOV‘[<iV\9 conditions are not good, such
as the salary is too low or we don't
get l/\oliclays, then we can inforw\ the
employer and request them to compl)_/
with our demands. Jt is up to them to
give us what we want. Jf they dont
want to do any’rlf\ing, then there is

always a next step.”

Really? And at that time, what did
you ask ](ov*? Did you get it?”

“We asked them fov* two ’rlf\ings. Tirst,
we asked them to pay the same rate

as other factories. Secondly, we

"A Piece of Justice."

asked that employees on daily payro”
get an extra 20 baht fov‘ a meal. We
told them that we would strike if these
demands were not met. They didn't
grant us either of our demands, but
asked us to consider their offev*

instead.”
“What was the offer? Did you take ite”

“They proposed to switch the salary
basis to be claily, and oﬁewed us the
oﬁicial minimum wage of 139 THB/
day. Howevew, the factory said then
they would no longer provide us
I/\omsing and othenr behefifs. We
ag reed to that and consented to move

)
out.”

“Then?”

”Wejusf continued to work as normal.
But from that point, they asked us to
sign-in befov‘e we worked. The job
was still the same. Some days we
were working but some days we were
idle. Once a month passec’, the
factory fired 71 workers.”

”Wl’\ygl/

“In writing, they accused us of three
c'x\av*ges. The first C[f\av‘ge was that
we had caused damage to the
employer and the factory. The second
claimed that aﬁer aclop’rilf\g the new
option fov‘ basis of payment, we got
lazy and were not finislz\ing our work.
And the third charge said they had
given us verbal and weritten warnings

but we clisobeyecl-”
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“Well, were the accusations true?”

“Not at alll How were we supposed
to work when they did not give us any
assignmem‘s? The other accusations
were also false. All we wanted was
to make more money. ]\]o claw\age
was done to them. Jt was just
impossible. We had to do someﬂz\ing
to protect our v‘iglf\’rs.”

“Did you ]Cov*m a group again?”

“Definitely. Once we were fired, we
got ’rogeflf\ev* and went to see yaMV\g
Chi Oo, who gave us legal advice and
told us what kind of v*iglf\fs we had.
They said we could file a claim for
compensation at the Oﬁice of Labor
Protection and Welfav‘e.”

“What do you have to do there to get

money from the employer?”

“We had to fill in the forms. They are
written Thai +[/\oL49|r\. The oﬁicials
there did fi” in the form fow us, but we
had to give them the informaﬁon such
as our names, our jobs, the name of
our employer, why we were filing the
claim, what we were Claiming, and

how much in total our demand was.”
“And what did you claim?”

“Well my colleagues and J were
requesting salary and severance pay
because they did not pay us the
minimum wage, and they did not give
us one month notice before dismissing

”
us.
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“Did you get the money right away?”

“No. The Oﬁice had to investigate the
employer to fim:l out move, because
they had to get the information from
both parties befov*e they issued the
order stating whether the emp]oyer
had to pay us, and if so, how much
they had to pay us.” This means you
could never be sure whether you

would get this money, right¢”

“Ves. However, once the order is
issued, if we clisagree with the v‘mling,
we can appeal it in court. But this will

only prolong the case.
“And how did your case tur out?”

“A few months aﬁev‘ we filecl the claim,
the officers informed us that they ruled

in our favow.”

Really? And how did your employer
pay you? Did you get what you asked
for?”

“Well, they said they didnt have
ehomg'r\ money, and asked that the
payment be delayed fov* a month.
Then they gave us the money.”

”Duw*ing the legal pwoceecling, did you
get a job? Did you face any trouble?”

“Well we actually did find a job, but it
was in a small factory. J only worked
fov‘ two months then J needed to look
for another job because they did not
have that much wovk. Jt was hard




too - we did not dare to go outside fov*
fecw‘ that the police would arvest us.
Some of us were even beaten up by
thugs. J was lucky J did not get

beaten.”

“Wow, it was not an easy fight, was
ie”

“Veah. Jt required a lot of patience
and unity.”

“Vou must have felt very satisfied once
you got the money fv*om your

employer. How much did you get?”

“Ves, we were very happy. J got
about 25,000 baht.

impor’ram‘ly my fv‘iends and J were

But more

I/\appy to teach the employev‘ alesson.
They needed to know what [’\appens

when you violate someone’s rights.”

“What's the most important thing you

gaineol ]Cv*om this whole experience?”

“J gained an understanding of the
law. Before, J had no idea how legal
stuff worked. But now, J can give
advice about what to do fov* those
whose riglr\Jrs have been violated. J
can tell you what kind of rights you

have.”

“Vou seem to have learned a lot from

your legal endeavor.”
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“Ves, and J am very happy that J
puw*smed it. The knowledge J gainecl
will be with me until the day J die. J
will also tell my story to as many
people as J can, so that workers like
us will know that we are entitled to

protection of our labor wiglmLs and we
should demand it.”

“Thank you so much for sharing your

legal knowledge with me.”

“Gladly, it makes me happy if you o

other people can benefif fv*om it

“TJ need to go now. Js there aV\yH/\iV\g

else you would like to tell me?2”

“Jf you want justice, don't just think
about it. You have to take action. Tf
you feel exploited or wronged, you
have to stand up and ask for justice.
You can help yourself better than any
organization can help you, because
it is you who knows best what you
have been through. That's why you
have to do it yourself.”

“Thank you so much. J am so
impressed with your story. J will
surely use it in the future. J hope we

run into each other again.

“Me too. See you soon.”
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One Step at a Time

Gomong came from Pyay
township, in Bago Division,
Burma, where he worked in the
logging industry. Other members
of his family were wage laborers
and his father makes and sells
sugar cubes for a living. Due to
his family’s poverty, he moved
to work in Mae Sot, Thailand.
He secured a job in a sewing
factory, which later fired him
without prior notice. As a result,
he and his friends brought this
case to justice by filing law suits
in both criminal and civil court.
The employer refused to pay
them compensation for their
severance pay and consequently

the employer’s properties were
seized and auctioned to fulfill the
judgment against the employer.

Gomong pad a chance to spare pis
experience fighting for justice with a gronp of bis
peers at a labor conference. The story of his labonr
Yights case receized 4 ot of attention at the mieeting.
He began telling bis story by introducing himself,
where fe came /‘mm ano Wéy e came to work in
Thailand. His story is similar to mumibers 0/ ather
migrant workers /‘mm Burmua who come to Thailan)
with the hopes of earning high wages and returning
Yome after only a short stay. Before moving to
77 éﬂ//dﬂd, Gomong had dreamed of earning enongh
10 afford a piece of land n his hometonn. He hoped
that jt would provide pis family a better [ife.
Unfortunately, bis labor rights were vidlate). He
and Jis /7/29/4()5 uniteo to érfﬂg their case o Justice.
His relentless fight provided valnable experience
Jor himself, as well as for other workers. That 7s
why Gomong was very excited Lo share

bis experience with labor lan:
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”Gomohg, could you tell us about younr
story, and why you and your friends
brought the case to court?”

“J was WOV‘l(il’\g at a sewing factory.
Befowe we were fiv‘ecl, we were told
the factory wanted to recruit more
people, and we were asked to
persuade ounr fv*iencls or relatives to
apply fowjobs there. We invited many
of ounr fv*iends and families to work
theve. U\V\fov"runa’rely, one month later,
the factory fired all workers, old and

”
new.

“Why did they fire you? Did they give

you any reason”

“They didn’t tell us anything. J
remember it was pay day. Right after
we received our salary, they fired us
all. We found out later that they did

not have any work fov‘ us to do.”

“Tt must have been dificmh‘, getting
fired so umexpea‘ec”y.”

“Ves. We could have looked for other
jobs had they told us in advance. What
was even worse was it I/\appeheol
clwﬁing the ime we needed to renew
our work pevmits. When we were
fi red, the fac’rovy also wefused to renew
our work permits. Jtwas very difficult

”
for us.

“Why didnt you find a new employer

to renew your work permitse”

“We could not because the employer

had also taken our TD cards. We only
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had a copy. We asked him to return
ouwr owiginal TorRow 38/1 to us, but
they demanded that we pay them 500
baht in excl'\ange fov* the ov‘iginal

cards.”
“Did any of you really pay for 2"

“No. We didn't believe that that we
would get the original card back if
we gave them 500 baht. Besides, we
did not have any money and we

alweady had the copies.”
“How many people were fiv*ecl?”

“Around 200. We had a discussion
and some people in the group knew
what our labor rights were. They told
us we should take up a legal case
and fig'/\’r fov*jus’rice. About 100 of us
finally went to see Yaung Chi Oo for

support.”
“How did Yaung Chi Oo help you?”

“They provided us information about
our labor riglf\’rs. Tl/\ey counseled us
on the the pros and cons of Iegal
pv‘oceedings, and told us about how

Iong the entire process would take.”

“Did all of you decide to go fowwav*d
then?”

“Not all. Some fel‘r cliscouw*aged aﬁer
knowing that it would take a |on9 Hme.
Only 36 of us still wanted to continue.”

“So, what did you do to actually

intHate the case?”
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“TFirst, we went to the Oﬁice of L abor
Protection and welfav*e to file the
complaint and filled the Kor Ror 7
fov‘m to request back wages and
overtime payment because the fadovy
had been paying us less than the
official minimum wage and had never

pc\id us overtime work.”
“What was the next sfep?”

”;A\ﬁer we submitted the fov*m, the
oﬁcicev‘s at Labor Protection oﬁice
contacted the employer and asked
them to pay us the reqmesfecl amount,

But, the employer simply refused to

”

pay.
“That's bad. What did the officers do?”
“They took the case to court.”

“Then were they willing to pay?”

“No, not yet. Jt was actually a
criminal c'/\cw*ge that the Oﬁice filecl
fov* thein disobeying the oﬁicial ordenr.
We had to file another case under civil

law if we wanted to get the money.”
“J see.”

“Ves, so we brought the case to Labor
Court. Then there were ]egal
proceclu\wes with fac’r—fincling and all
that. Then the count gave ’r'/\ejw:lgmehf
against the employer to give us the

money.”
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“So, did that make them pay?”
“Not yet. So, we took another step.”
“What step is that €7

“Tt is the legal execution process, it
fov*ces +|/\e employev‘ to ]Co”ow the court

ovder.
“How did the process wonrk?”

“We reques+e¢:| that the counrt appoint
a legal execution team, and then the
employer’s assets weve seized and
auctioned, to get the money to pay

”
us.

“How did they seize those assets?”
Y

“The team just went to his house to
identify the assets and then literally
took his belongings."

“Who had to go to his house that day?”

“There were oﬁicev‘s fv‘om the legal
execution clepaWrmen’r, police oﬁcicev*s,
a lawyer and representatives of the

workers.”

“Can they seize a piece of land as

well2”

“Ves. They can confiscate anything
that is in the employer’s name or is
present in his premises and can be
sold. J]C itis a piece of land, ’rlf\ey have
to make sure that it belomgs to the
employew, and then they can take it.”




“After they seized the asset, how did
they sell them?”

“The Depav"rmeh’r of Legal Execution
will publicize the sale of assets.
peop]e can buy them in an auction.
Affer all the assets are sold, the

money is ’rv‘amsfawed to the workers.”

“Have you received the full amount as

weqmes’reol so faw."

“Not yet, because the money raised
from everything that has been seized
and sold is still not enough to pay all
of us. Che clepav*’rmevﬂ' has started
investigating whether the employer
has any other assets that can be

seized.”

“This employer is really stubbowrn,

even resisting the couwrt order.”

“We are no less stubborn than he is.
We are still insisting that he must pay

”
us.

“But this will take a long Hime, won't
ire”

Ves, it will. But, we all trust in the

justice system so we will not give up.”

“Vou all are great. Besides the
prolongecl period of the pv*oceeclings,
did you face any othenr pv‘oblems
during the time?”
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“Thank you. In fact, we are not that
great. We are just ordinary workers
like you are, but we were very
determined to figlf\’r for our rights.
Another problem we had during the
process was trying to find a new job.
Once they knew that we used to work
in this factory, they simply turmed us

down.”

“Did you get a new job eventually?’

“Ves. After a few months, J got a job.
Then, J shared the money J earned
with the rest of the worker who hadn’+

found a new job yet.”
“How did you live during that time?”

“Vaung Chi Oo helped us with
accommodation and food. They
believed that ifwe won, other fac’rories
would stop fakimg aclvom’rage of other

workers.”

“Vour story is very admirable. What
you have done will surely have a
great, immediate and ]ong—las’ring
impact on the WOV‘[{iV\g conditions of

other workers.”

“J believe that if we don't give up, we
will surely get what we want. The
most impowtant ’rlf\ing fov‘ workers are
our labor riglx\’rs. We have to exercise
ouwn v‘igl'\’rs, and protect them. Do not

ever let anyone violate our wiglr\’rs.”

“Ves, we must protect our rig'm‘s and

exercise them.”
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"A Piece of Justice.'

The Impossible Proves to be Possible

Kham, a 23-year-old
woman, left her hometown
in Shan State in Burma when
she was only 13. Since she
first came to Thailand nine
years ago, she has worked as
a domestic employer for a
single employer without
getting paid. When she was
able to finally leave her
employer, she received only
18,000 baht. After receiving
legal advice, she decided to
exercise her rights through the
legal system. As a result, she
received an additional 30,000
baht, thus earning a total of
48,000 baht for her nine—
year tenure as a domestic
worker.

Kpan was waiting for ber friends at a
conference, mhen she glanced nyon a familiar person
W[/éiﬂg Lowards fer. She [éongé[, “coul) that be my
o) friend that 1 have longed to see again?”

“Kham, is that you?” she asked with

excitement.

“Ngern. J¥s really you!” replied Kham who,
overwhelmed with oleligl'\’r, held her old fv‘iencl’s

hands tightly.

“! ook at you. We haven't seen each other fow
almost 10 years now. You haven't changed
much at all” Kham said as she recalled a

distant memonwy of her childhood fwiencl.

“Vou too. J heard that you won a case against
your employer who hadn’t paid you any of
your salary. Js that true?” Ngern asked

eagerly.

NINFIIANITULANATEIUTNY
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“Ves. Do you know what happened?”

Kham was g/aa’ that someone knew

her story.

“J do. Im so lucky to run into you
today. Can you tell me how domestic
workers like us can get employev‘s to

pay back our wages?”

“TJ didn't believe that J had the rvight
to get my employev‘ to compensate me,
but J just received over forty thousand
baht from him.”

“Forty thousand baht?”

“Ves. Jf you ask me, it's definitely not
how much J deserved. J had worked
for him for nine years and seven
months. But it is better than no’r'z\ing,
isn't ite”

“Ves, but more importantly employers
will learn their lesson. Jf they don't
pay what they owe, we have the right
to make them pay.”

“What about you? Js anyone [f\elping
you¢”

“J¥s a long story. Come. Let's sit
together. J have quite a lot to tell you.”
Both strolled around to look fov‘ a goocl
place to sit, and Kham started to

share her experience.

“J leﬁ home when J was only thirteen.
My aunt took me to Thailand. She
made all the arrangements to get me

fv‘ow\ my home to the door of my
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employew’s house. J worked for this

employer for almost ten years.”

“And clwr*ing that whole time he never

gave you any salary?”

”Yes.”
”W[’\Y?”

“Well, when J started, he told me he
would give me one thousand five
hundred baht per month. But in the
begivw\ilf\g, he said had to deduct one
thousand baht ]Cv*om my salav‘y each

month.”
“For whate”

“When my aunt brought me here she
asked fov‘ 7,800 baht fv*ow\ my
employer to cover the costs. She said
it was fov* the hotel, the food, and the
+wave|ivx9. So, J had to let him take
that amount fiv‘sf befov*e J could

receive the fu“ salavy."

“So you had to give him one thousand
baht for eight months?”

“Ves, J had to pay back the debt.”

“What about the remaining five
hundred per monthe”

“My employer said he would keep it
fov‘ me, and he would give it to me

when J wanted to quit.”

Really? Well, you worked for almost
ten years. Did you try asking for the

money?”




”Yes J did. yz\ﬁew about three years,
J wanted to have some savings for
myself, so J tried to ask ]Cov‘ it. Do you

know how much he gave me?’

“How much?”
“Two hundred.”
WHAT? Two hundred?”

“Ves, two hundred. He said J was a
live-in domestic worker. There would
always be clothes to wear, foocl to eat,
a place to stay. So he said J didn't
need any money, because he would
get anything for me if J just asked.
So, J didnt know how to respond.
But J asked for money from him

again. Each Hme J would get two
hundred baht.”

“Why didn’t you just quit and get a

new job?”

“TJ didn't want to lose my salary from
all those years. J was afv*aicl J
wouldnt be able to get the money.
Also, J was afv‘aid to go anywhere

alone.”

Really? You couldnt go out of the

house?”

“J wouldnt dare. J would ohly go with
my employer because J had no
documents or ID. J was afraid J
would be deported if I went out

alone.”

“That's true. Jf you were deported,
you would not get any money to take

home.”

"A Piece of Justice."

“Ves. And coming back here would
cost a lot also. Jf J couldnt bv‘ihg
some money back home, then J would

lose everything.”

“Why didnt you talk with anyone
about this then? Jf you had gotten in
touch with MAP, you wouldnt have
had to suffer for so long.”

“But you know J wouldn't even dare
leave my employev"s house. How
could J get to know any othenr
people?”

“Oh, you are right.”

“And since day one, he told me to
speak Thai and not Shan. So, when
J went out with him, J was speaking
Thai. perlf\aps J had met other
migrants, but nobody would have
known since J only spoke Thai.”

“Ves. Well, you are very patient to
have worked for him fov* almost ten

years.”
“Well, he made me believe in him too.”
“What do you mean?”

“He said J was like a daughter to him.
He told me he would send me to study
at beauty school when J got older. J
believed him, but again J also didn't
have the courage to look for o’rl/\ey‘job.
Like J said, J had no other choices
and J didnt know what to do. J had

no one really. So J had to stay with
'/\iW\-”
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“And how did you eventually leave?”

“Well, in 2004, the Thai government
announced that employers had to take
migrant workers to register fov* an JD
ow Hf\ey would face punis'r\mem-. So J
went to register, and fov"rwf\a’rely J met

my elder brother.”

Really? You must have been so I/\appy
that day, to see your brother aﬁer

almost ten years.”

“Ves. J vushed to my brother. You
know, J wasn’t fluen’r in Shan. J
hadn't spokeV\ it for more than nine
but J still
everything. J was trying to tell him
that J didn’t get paid, but aﬁer

exchanging a few words, my

yeavs, understood

employer saw me speaking to him and
immediately took me home. J only had
enough time to get my brother's phone

number.”

“So when you arrived home you could
easily call and ask him to pick you
up. Js that what happened?”

“Ves, but J couldnt reach him on the
phone.”

”WI/\Y V\Of. ”

“Well, my employer saw me taking his
number. So he kepi’ the number and

wrote it down fov* me later.”

“So when he asked, you for the

number you just gave it to him?e”

“He was my employer. J believed
everything he said.”
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“So what did you do when you couldnt
make that call?”

“TJ tried several times, but it was
always busy. So then J thought my
employer might have given me a
wrong number. So when he was
away, J sneaked in his room and
searched for his phone book. There
J fouw\cl the note my brother wrote.
The number he wrote me had a few
digits switched around. That was
when it really dawned on me that my
employew was not actually treating me
well. He had tricked me to work for
him for free. That was all.”

“J just started working as a domestic
worker recently. J¥'s really good to
know all this. So J will not easily trust
anyone. Anyways, keep going. What
did you do after you had your

brother's correct numbere”

“J called him right away, and told him
where the house was. Then he
immediately came over. We told my
employer that J had to go home and
J would like to withdraw all my

salary.”
“Wow, and how much did you get?”

”;l\ch/\a”y, he didn't allow me to go
out with my brother. He told me to wait
a bit longer and he lf\imselfwomld take
me home by plane, but J wouldn’t be
foolecl again, So we told him our
parents were really sick and J had
to leave Mv‘gen’rly. That got him, and
he gave me 18,000 baht.”




“For nine years and seven months’

work?”

“Ves, that was all he gave me. J was
stunned too. So J told him that it was
not enouglf\ fov* me to go home. J even
asked why it was so little since J had

worked ](ov* almost ten years.”

“What did he have to say then?”

“He said that was all he had. He had
invested all the money in building
dovrmitories, and he told me to take
that amount to begih with. Once J
returned to Thailand he would give
the rest to me. J didnt know what to
do, so J just took that money and left.”

“And what did you do to get more

money?”

“My brother knew that MATP
Foundation pwovides support to
migrant worvkers like us, so he took
me to MATP. _Clx\ey advised me that J
was entitled to request fov‘ the total
salary J had earned, but J needed
to fl“ in the Kor Ror 7 ]Cov‘m at the
le\icw\g Mai Labour Protection oﬁice.
And that was where J went.”

“TJt's great that we have this ofﬁce to

take care of this fov‘ us.”

“In tact T was not at all convinced
that J would be able to get movre
money. But then seven days aﬁew J
filed the request at the Office, my
employer and J were summoned to
negotiate the om’rs’randing balance.”

“What was the outcome of the

V\egofiaﬁon?”
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“J started to ask him to pay the entire
amount owed to me. My salary fov*
nine years and seven months would
have amounted to 128,700 baht. He
v*efusecl to pay this, and so a second
negotiation was scheduled. This time
he ag reed to pay me another 30,000
baht. This is without clf\av‘ging me fov*
the JD registration fee that he had
pc\icl fov‘ me. J ’rlf\ouglx\f that was the
best solution fov* me. J 'H/\oug'/\’r about
+al—<in9 this to court, but, accov‘c{ing to
the advice J received, it seemed to
be a very long process. Also, there is
no law that protects live-in domestic
workers like us and there is no
minimum wage for us. All in all, there
was no’r'x\ir/\g to make sure that J would
win in court. Besides, J wanted to
get a new job and didnt want to lose
time. That was why J decided to take
the 30,000 baht oﬁev‘, which makes it
48,000 baht in total that J received

fv*ow\ him.”

“Hmm. J¥'s actually better than
V\o’rlf\ing.”

“Ves. J'm so happy to see you today.
J hope you don't end up like me.”

“J need to thank you for sharing this
with me. J won't easily trust anyone.
If the employer doesn't pay my salary
then J will get a new job right away.
J have learnt fv*om you that we are
entitled to receive the accumulated
salary, even without having an JD

card.”

“Ves. Everybody is entitled to receive

their unpaid salavy.”

No Human Being is Tlegal 27



"A Piece of Justice.

Kham wrapped up the story as the group work activity was
about to beg/'m. Both Kham amc//\/ge%m fhemjol'mea’ofhe% /[w'enc/s
in the group. Kham hoped to share this experience fo even
more peop/e and that others would ;[/'/40/ + use/[u/.
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Raising the Standard

Chidra formerly worked in a
factory in Yangon, but
migrated to Thailand for a
factory job in Mae Sot. He
and his colleagues did not
receive the minimum wage or
overtime. When they tried to
negotiate with the employer
for compliance with labour
standards, they were
unsuccessful. They then took
the case to the Office of
Labour Protection and
Welfare , and later to Labour
court. The case lasted for a
year and a half, from April
2006 to October 2007, ending
with the workers finally
receiving the compensation
they deserved.

Wé//e waiting ﬁ)r a bus tmw//iﬂg to
Myanwaddy, Toon canght glimpse of Chidra, an
aol) ﬁf/ém) ﬁam the same hometown mho used o
work in the same /dc’l‘wy with bim,

“Chidra, are you going home?”

“Ves. YOM too?”

“Veah. How have you been? J've been

wanting to talk to you about something.”
“Please go ahead.”

“J want to take legal action. My wage is
very low now, and and my friend and J were
talking about it. We think that it may be
possible to ask fov* the minimum wage, but
we are not so sure whether it will actually
work or whether it is worth ](iglf\’rihg for. J

know you went to court before, so J was

WOndev‘ing how i+ went.”
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“Ol, of course, T can tell you about
it. Tt took a long time, but J finally
won compensation for my unpaid
wages. In the begir/w\ing, J was also
skep’rical whether we would get the
money. But, J am telling you now that

Thai law can clefinh‘ely protect us.”
“Migrant workers like use”

“Ves. Thai law protects all wovkers
alike. However, to take legal action,
you and your friend need to be patient
and stick it out to the end.”

Really? But you just said Thai laws
provide protection to all. What do we
need to be so patient fov‘? Don't we
endure enough hardship already?”

“Well, the process involves a lot of
small details which takes time. You
need to prove your case with
withesses and all that. You also have
to make a very exact calculation of
your actual start date, and how much
the daily wage you earned was for
how many days, plus how many hours
you worked overtime, and so on. All
of this just takes time.”

“How much time did you spencl on it¢”

“A year and a I/\alf.”

“ A year and a L\alfe For how much

money?”
“Just over ten thousand baht”

“Do you think it was worth it J dont
think so.”
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“The amount doesn’t seem like it was
worth all the trouble and the time. But

in the long vun, it is worth it.”
//Why?//

“Well, it's raising a new bar for the
employers. They are leaw\ing that we
can always file charges against them

if they violate our rights.”

“New bare Riglf\fs violation? What are

these terms?”

“TJ mean, befowe this, migrant workers
like us have always been taken
aclvcm’rage of, like being paid below
the minimum wage. In spite of that,
none of us H/\ov\glf\f of fov‘cing the
employers to pay us back. But now
there are actual cases where workers
are winning and the employers really
have to pay the compensation. The
employev‘s are becoming aware that
we have the righ’r to sue them ]Cov*
exploiting us. For workers like us, we
should know that we have the wig'm‘ to

pursue justice too.”

“Well, that's true. And how did you
feel during the trial? Jt must have been
very tough for you, right?”

“Tt was. Tt was hard to get a new
job, and J had to watch out fow police
all the time when going to court. But
my friends and J gave each other
moval support. We clepencled on each
other until we all won the case. Jf J
could turn back time, J would still

choose to pursue this case.”




“Besides supporting one another, who

else L\elped you?¢”

“We received suppowt from MAP
Ovrganization and Yaung Chi Oo
Workers Association (YCOW;Z\) who
provided us with food and homsing.
They also gave us legal advice and
infov*mecl us what our wiglf\’rs are and
what we could do. But J have to tell
you that the most important factor of
these

our victory was not

organiza+ions."
“What's more important?”

“Jt¥'s the solidarity and the patience
of all of us workers, and keeping fai’rlf\
in the law. No matter how lohg or how
diﬁicm” it gets, if we have ehomglf\

patience then justice will be served.”

“So tell me how you and your friencls

started the process foge’rlf\ev‘."

“At the begivw\ing, J just wondered
why my salary never went up, why J
kepf getting less money. When J
realized others sharved this fwu\s’rra’rion
at the fac’rovy, my co”eagmes and J
formed a group. The group grew as
big as 160 people befov‘e we took the
case to court. At that ime we werve
hired, we earned 100 baht per dozen,
and it took us two full days to make a
dozen pieces. We were never paic’
overtime. The best +|/\in9 we got was
a pack of instant noodles if we worked
;Z\” of these awfml

made us decide to

until 11 pm.
conditions

approaclf\ the employer, to ask fow a
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raise to 140 baht per dozen pieces.

+—|€ v‘efu\sed U\S-”

“Then what did you do?”

“So, we pwoposecl that they pay us 8
- 10 baht per hour fov* overtime work.

This was turned down as well.”

“Overtime means wov‘kimg in the

evening, right?

“Ves, working after five o'clock can
be considered overtime, and we are

entitled to receive extra payment.”

“Wow, J never knew that! For a long
time J've been w0rl<in9 overtime ]Cov*
V\o’rlx\ing. Thisis goocl. We will demand
our rights for OT. Then maybe J can

start saving some money.”

“OK, let's get back to the story. Aﬁev‘
the employer refused to pay fov*
overtime, we went to talk to YQMV\Q
Chi Oo, who recommended that we
file a claim at the Oﬁice of Labounr
Protection and Welfare.”

“Whevre is this oﬁice? Did you have to

travel fare”

“No, it's l«‘iglmL here in Mae Sot. In
facb there is an office of L abour
Protection and Welfare in every

province.”

“What about the court? Didn't you go

)
to counrt?’

“Not atfirst. You can start the process
at the Labour Protection Office.”
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“And how come you ended up going

to court?”

“Well, the Oﬁice of Labour Protection
and Welfare arranged a negotiation
between the emp'oyev‘ and us. We
requested the employer pay minimum
wage, which was 139 baht a day. The
employer said that they could do that,
but they would need to deduct other
costs inclmcling elec’rwicify, tap watev,
food, and accommodation, which
came to 80 baht. This would leave us
with a 59 baht wage. We couldn’t
accept this, and told them to pay us
overtime, if they wanted to deduct

these costs.”

“With the OT, you would get more
money per day than the minimum

wage?"

“Ves. After we proposed this, the
employer did not take any action. So
the Labor Protection Office took the

case to the count.”

“They did that for you?”

“Ves. Jt¥'s their job.”

“And what did the court say?”

“The judge proposed that the
employer pay 50% of the actual wage
plus the overtime payment, and asked
if we could accept that. Then we
agv*eecl to this oﬁer.”
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“Did you get the money right away?”

“The employew asked to pay us in
three installments. But in the end,

everybody received the money.”

“Now J feel movre conficlem‘ that
migrant workers like us can take ]egal

action to demand justice.”

“Of course. Every wovker, regardless
of their nationality, is entitled to
protection under Labour Law. Jtis

up to you to exercise your rights.”

“Thanks to you, J get it now. Although
no’r'z\ing comes easy; if we stand up
+oge’r|/\ev* fov* what we deserve,
everything is within our reach. More
importantly this will have a positive
|on9—|as’rin9 impact fov* our children
and the next genev‘aﬁon. T will talk
with my friends at the factory about
this.”

“Ves. We can make the change and
contribute to fair employment
practices. J am very lf\appy to share
my story with you today. Please feel
free to ask me anything. J will be more
than happy to give you some advice.
J really believe you will receive justice

if you take your case to court.”

“J believe in my own wigl/ﬁs, too.”
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We are Also People with Rights

Sumianmu is from Yangon,
Burma. In Burma, she worked
as a seamstress and earned
very little income. She and her
husband agreed to move to
work in Mae Sot, Tak
Province. Both of them got
their first jobs in a knitting
factory. Then they moved to
a garment factory, where they
earned very low wages. In
addition, the factory had a
strict policy on the use of
electricity and tap water,
which created great difficulties
for all the workers. The
workers gathered together and
requested a raise to receive
proper income and asked the
employer to provide them
with better amenities. As a
result, they were fired. The
workers filed a complaint at
the Labour Protection Office,
which then ordered the
employer to pay them
compensation. Sumianmu
participated in a Thai and
migrant worker conference.
During a tea break, a Thai
worker came to talk to her.
Sumianmu can understand and
speak Thai fluently, so she
could communicate with her.

34

No Migrant Worker is Ilegal

“Hi. My name is Porn. What is your name?”

”MY name is Sumianmu. Jt is nice to meet

you.”

“TJt is nice to meet you too. J work as a
construction worker. You are a factory

worker, aren’t you?”

“Ves. How do you know?”

“J have heard about you. J kinow that you
have used the Labour Protection Oﬁice.”

“That's right.”

“Can you tell me what it takes to get

compensation fv‘ow\ an employev‘?”

“Well, if you think you have been exploited
ovr that an employev‘ has violated youwr v*ig'x\’rs,

you must file a complaint at the Labour
Protection Office.”

“What happened to you and how did you
end up at the Labour Protection Oﬁice?"

”My husband and J were working at a
garment fac’rovy where we got paicl very low
wages and +|/\ey had very strict rules
concerning the use of elec’rv‘ici’ry and tap

water.”
“How did they control it?”

“The employer turned oﬁ: the elech»iciiy and
tap water very early. They were very stingy.
Sometimes Jrlf\ey turned off the tap water while

one of the workers was still ’raking a bath.”




“That's terrible. How much did you
guys earn at that factory?’

“Just 80 baht a day”

“That is so low, even lower than the

minimum wage.”

“Exactly. We could not save any
money because there was no money
left each month. That's why we could

not return I/\o me.”

“What does your family do and how

many people are in your family?”

“We have 7 people al’roge’rlr\ev*. /\/\y
brother and sister also wovrk herve in
Thailand. My younger sister is still
very young and lives with my mom and
dad. J want to send them some

money.”
“How often do you go home?”

“Not so oﬁeV\. Just once or twice a

year.”
“Are you homesick?”

“Ves, J miss them so much. My
parents are also very wowrried about
us. We have to be patient and figlf\f
for a better Iife. We want to take good
care of our parents and want to have
enough money to have a good life.
Come what may, we have to be very

patient.”

“Vou arve grea+! So, tell me, what did
you do after they were exploiting you
like that?”
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“We formed a group to negotiate with
the employer to be more lenient with
our use of electricity and tap water.
But they turned us down.”

“What did you do next?”

“We had a discussion and came up
with an idea to werite a formal letter to

explain to them ounr diﬁicul’ries."
“What did the letter say?”

“Generally Speaking, we demanded
two things. Firstly, that they give us a
raise fwow\ 80 to 100 baht a day and
secondly they had to provide us aw\ple
amount of electricity and tap water
for use. We also gave them the
deadline to fu\lfi” our requests or else

we would go on strike.”

“Was it successful?”

“No. So we went on strike.”
“How did the employer react?”

“They cut off electricity and water
right after they read that letter. That
was very difﬁcmlf ]cov‘ us. A day aﬁew
that our group leaders went to consult
YO\ung Chi Oo who gave us legal
advice. But there was V\o’rlr\ing we
could do at that time because some of
our friends were still in the factory and
would get into trouble as a result of

N ”
our achons.

“What happened nexte”
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“Two clays aﬁev‘ that the ew\ployer
called the police to fov*ce all of us who

joinecl in the strike oﬁ of the premises.”
“How many people were dismissed?’

“118. We all moved out. Some of us
moved to live with their relatives who
were alreacly w0v*l<in9 in Thailand.
However, 80 people did not have

anywlf\ewe to go so we went to stay

with Yaung Chi Oo.”

“After that, you filed the complaint at

the Labour Protection Office, didn’t
you?”

“Ves. But before we went to the Office,
ygv\ng Chi Oo and MAP counseled
us on the legal process and our labor
rights. They said we could make a

claim to defehd our wiglf\’rs at the
L abour Protection Oﬁice.”

“And what do you have to do at the
Oﬁice?”

“We just infov*mecl the oﬁicers that we
wanted to file a claim against the
employer fov* wages, payment fov*
overtime and holidays, as well as fov*
the insufficient amenities they provided

to us.”
“What happened nexte”

“They asked us to fill out a form and
told us they would call the employew

fov* questioning.”

“Did all of you go to file the claim?”
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“Not all of us. Only 80 of us went
there. But gv*aclma”y less people

stayed in the case.”
//Why?//

“We had many problems duwing the
process. Some of them could not wait,
so Hr\ey decided just to quit and get a
new job. Some accepfecl the money
which the employer oﬁewecl to olv*op

the claim.”

“Ts that so? How much did the
employer pay them?”

“They paid 5,000 baht each. This
money was for them to drop the claim.
Aﬁev‘ geHiV\g the money, these people

returned to their homes in Burma.”

“Were there any other problems
during the process?”

”Yes. ;Z\]Cl'ev* we ]Ci]ecl the claim at the
Labour Protection Office, they sent
someone to threaten us into dwopping
the claim. But we did not let them
scare us. Lhen they proposecl the
offev‘ of 5,000 baht to us. We could
not get a new job easil)_/ because our
ex—employer had told other places not
to hire us. Jt was very difficult to live
because we did not have eV\ougl/\
money. Anyway, we were lucky that
ygung Chi Oo and MATP lf\elpecl us
with food and a place to stay.”

“Did you get the compensation as a

result of the complain’r?”




“Ves. The Office of Labour Protection
and We]fav‘e issued the order which
fowcecl ounr ](ov‘mev* employew to pay us

15% of the amount we requested.”
“Why is the amount so low?”

“Ves, it was very low. But it is better
than getting nothing. But more
importantly, it gave employers a
lesson that they have to pay fov*
exploiting us. Next time, they won't
dare exploit us because we will file a

claim against them.”

“What if you hadn't wanted to accept
the amount of compensation in the

ovdev?”

“We could continue appealing but it
would take longev‘. So, we decided to
take it.”

“How did you feel aﬁev‘ all these?”

“J felt both happy and sad. J am
happy that the Office finally ordered
them to give us the compensation. On
the other hand, J feli’ sad that only 20
of us could stand the pressure and
get that money. J]C morve of us had
stuck Jroge’rl'\ev*, J would have fel’r much
better.”

"A Piece of Justice."

“Ttis just because Hf\ey could not stand

the pressure, isn't it¢”

“Ves. You see, our fight was very
1‘01/\9!/\. And we couldnt get a job, so
we did not have money. There were
people at home that needed our
remittances and they faced financial
difficulties as well. Jtwas a prolonged
process. So, many workers ended up
accepting that 5,000 baht oﬁcer
instead of figl/\ﬁng.”

“Well, all of you were patient.”
7 Y P

“Thank you. We all had to support
one another sprivitually. That's why
we didn’t get discovw*agecl to fig'm‘.”

“That's a very good story and
exaw\ple to hear about. Jf someone
takes aclvah’rage o]( me, J will stand
up and demand my rights like you

have done.”
“J'w also glacl to share this with you.”

“Thank you. No matter what
nationalities we are, we all have equa/

rights. We will fight together.”

“Ves. We will fight together for our
rights.”
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Standing Up for Our Rights

Matian Tae is originally from
Mon State in Burma. She
moved to work in Mae Sot to
earn money in order to follow
her dream of opening a shop
in her hometown.
Unfortunately, her employer
did not allow its employees to
take leave during Songkran
festival. As a result, the
workers went on strike. The
employer asked the police to
arrest and send these workers
back to Burma. However,
Matian Tae and her friends
came back to Mae Sot to
exercise their rights as
protected by law. They
demanded their wages,
overtime payment, severance
pay and possession of their
migrant ID cards which had
been confiscated when they
were working in the factory.
They fought for 3 years and
finally obtained a partial
amount of the requested

compensation.
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Matian Tue returned éome lo visit éer
parents jn Burma onring the Songhran holiday.
All of Yer relatives were very glao to see er again
Lecanse spe had been aniay /07 S0 /Oﬂg. So fée/y
gﬂ[éere() o édw Oimner L‘ogetéer at éer éame and
conzversed éee}ﬁ//y Téey asked per mHany questions
about per //fe in Thailand such as per //'Diﬂg
conoitions, Yer m)ré/ Yer wages, and pow Yer
emp/qyer treated per. Then spe 5/70%3 about fer
experience with the Thai Justice system when she
exercised fer vights to derand compensation from
Yer ol) Waré/y/dca Al 0/ Yer relatives were very
interested n this story, df/iéc’fd/{/p Yer cousin mho
was considering working in Thailand

“Ts that true? J¥'s hard for me to believe that

we are protected under Thai law.”

“J did not believe it at fi rst either. But, J have
proved it and J can confiv‘m that Thai laws
provide eqv\al protection to all workers in

Thailand regardless of their nationality.”

Really? Have you been to the count as well?
What was it like? Jt sounds terrifying to me.”

”Yes. J hadnt expecfecl to go to court. Jt+
was very in’rimida’ring fow me at fiv*s’r, but once
J was in the courtroom, there was V\oH/\iV\g to
be scared about. The court is a place to
provic’e justice fov‘ all. Tt is neither horrible
now ’rev*v*ifying.




“So what happened? Why did you

have to go to counrte”

“Ttis a long story. Jt started when J
saw one of my fv‘iencls arguing with
the supervisor. J thought it was
probaHy about work but J didn't know
for sure. J overheard the supervisor
tell her that if she did not do what he
said, she would no longer be able to
work there. A few days later J saw
them fig'm‘ing again but it seemed more

serious than the fi rst Hime.”
“And what l'\appenecl nexte”

“J saw them figl/\’ring in the morning,
and J saw that the supervisor went

to the manager's office. In the
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aﬁernoon, some police oﬁicers came

to the facfov*y to arrest my fwiencl.”
“Police? Wlf\y?”

“J did not know, and my friends also
did not have a clue. The rest of us in
the facfov‘y then got +oge+l/\er and
asked the manager to bail my fv*iencl

out.”

“Did he do thate”

“Ves. J think the manager helped bail
her out because he probably did not
want the trouble with the workers to

escalate.”

“So, the situation was better aﬁer her

release, wasn't ite”
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“No. On the contrary, it got worse.”
“Why?”

“The factory set an even stricter rule
that we had to work on holidays, even

during Songkran (water festival).”

“That's awfull With that rule, you

couldn’t come home.”

“‘Ves. Anyhow, everyone needs
holidays. We need to have a break

fwom work and a chance to see our

family.”

“What did you do after they

announced the rule?”

“We went on strike. How could we
allow them to exploi’r us? J][ we let them
do this, they would have kept taking
advantage of us and we would never

be able to have a better |ife.”
“What did you do in your protest?”

“There were seven leaders who
ov*gomizecl the protest. The owners
then asked the police to come arrest

”
us.

“Police again?”

“Ves, the police came and tried to
arvest the leaders, but we did not let
them. So the owner asked the police
to arrest all of us, claiming that we
had caused damage to his fac’royy.
We eroppecl WOV‘l(iV\g and he could not
deliver his orders. But if we didn’t figl/\’r
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+oge+|/\ev*, we were never going to get
the faiv‘ treatment we deserve. We

have the y*igl/\’r to demand ounr rig'x\’rs."
“What do you mean by ’riglm‘s’?”

”Rig'f\fs’ are someﬂ/\ing we are entitled

to have or receive.”
“Can you give some exaw\ples?”

“TFowr exaw\ple, as an employee, J
have labor rights. The labor rights say
we are, to be paicl atleast the minimum
wage as established by the law. When
we work more than 8 hours, we are
entitled to receive overtime payment.
Other than that, there are lf\olidays,
Hme to rest, clean and safe places to
work and live, among other rigl/\fs. J]C
you are interested, J will give you
some’rl/\ing to read and let you know
when we have any meetings onr

activities.”

“Thank you. Anyway, were all your
rights you just mentioned being
protected?”

“No. That's why we had to profes’rancl
go to court L et me continue the story.
;Z\f’rev* we were arrested, we were
detained at the immigration oﬁice fov*
a night. Our ID cards were
confiscai'ed. We were sent back to
Burma via the Friendship Bridge path
on the fo”owing day. We did not go
back home but stayed around the
Moey River for a few days. Then we
crossed the border back to Mae Sot

oo
agam.




“Why did you go back to Mae Sot?”

“We wanted to consult with YVaung Chi
OO .”

“What is Yaung Chi Oo?”

”YQU\V\Q Chi Oo is a Burmese
organization which works with
Burmese people. Tt mainly provides
consultation on labor v*iglf\’rs. f\ﬁev‘ we
met with them, we learned that we
were protected by the law. Yaung Chi
Oo explained what rights we are
entitled to, and told us we could initiate
a |e9a| claim asking fov* our wages,
overtime payment and compensation

fov* being ]Civ‘ecl by the employev‘.”

“What did you do aﬁev‘ knowing about
your rights?¢”

“We had a discussion and we all
agreecl that we would file a lawsuit

N b ”
against our ex-voss.

“How did you do thate”

“We went to the Office of Labour
Protection and we'fare to fi” the foy‘m
to claim for our wages, overtime,

severance pay C\V\d ‘FOV‘ return O‘F ouwr

confiscoﬁred JDs.

“What else did Yaung Chi Oo help
you with¢”

“Vaung Chi Oo took us to the Office
of L abowr We]fav‘e and Protection, and
its s’raﬁ told us what we needed to do
and how to do it. Jts network pariner
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called MATP Foundation was also
theve. Both organisations pv*oviclecl
legal advice about our wig[/\’rs, and
other infov‘ma’rion we needed to know.
They gave us a lot of information.
Anyway, to win the case or to get our
we had to

demands, rely on

”
OMV‘SGIVGS .

Really? Can you tell me more about
your fight?”

“We got ’roge’rl/\ev*, cheeved each other
up, and foug'r\’r side by side. We did
not give up until we achieved what

we wanted.”
“How long did it take to win?”

“3 years.”
”W'f\y did it take so |on9?”

“Cach process was quite complica’recl.
J also 'l"/\oug'/\’r that it was Iohg. But,
then on second ’rl'\ouglf\f, it wasn’t too
long; these Hf\ings don't come easy.
And, if we won and the ex-boss had
to pay us, then employews would learn
that they can’t take advan’rage of us
anymore. J also think that the whole

process W\iglz\’r be shorter in the fuh/w‘e.”

“J see. During your trial in court, were

there any troubles?”

“No. While the case was being sent
to court for trial, J got a new job. J
was lu\cky that my new boss
understood my situation and allowed

me to go to comv"r.yA\I’rlf\ou\gl/\ J had not

No Human Being is Tlegal Y]



'A Piece of Justice.

gotten my JD card back, J used the “J'm also happy to share my valuable
TorRowr 38/1 paper (migrant workenr experience with you. Now we all
registration cem‘ifica’re) to apply ]Cov* a know that all of us have riglfn‘s and

new job.” we have to protect our rights.”
) P g

“Thank you very much for sharing “Ves, we do have rights.”

your story with me, otherwise J would

have never known about labor rights. After finishing the story, Matian Tae

J've always thought that we just have  continued having dinner with her

to give in to the employer.” relatives, and happily spent her
holidays with her family.
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In the End We Will be Paid

Mio is from Yangon,
Burma. In Burma, she earned
12,000 kyat (around 360
baht) a month as a tailor.
She wanted to support her
family financially and to
help pay for her brother’s
education. With that in
mind, Mio and her husband
decided to move to and
work in Mae Sot in
Thailand’s Tak province.
They got a job at a knitting
factory, but shortly
afterwards; a group of
workers including Mio and
her husband were fired. As
a result, they made a
collective effort to file a
claim at the Labour
Protection Office for their
unpaid wages, overtime
payment, and severance pay
from their employer. In the
end, the Office ordered the
employer to pay Mio and
all  other  workers.
Individually, Mio received

approximately 20,000 baht.

International Migrants Day 75 celebrated
in several locations in Thaiand lhc/m)/hg Mae Sot.
The event attracts a /mye nuniber 0/ migrant
Woréem/ esﬂecid//y Burmese. This past year the
organizers presented a pistory of the International
Migrants Day along with information concerning
Labor r/'gé[s. Several migrant workers who had
exercised their vights By taking legal action spoke at
I%e event to sédre tée/'r exyerience W/Z‘é 01%675. vy ée
participants were Oipided into smaller groups, each
witha migrant worker who shared bis/ Ver exyerience.
Mio was one 0/ the workers who was Wi//f'ﬂg to

Share.

”Jf you would like to know omy’rl/\ing about the

problems J expev‘ienced, please feel fv‘ee to

ask.”
“How did your story begin?”

“Jt started when my husband and J were still
WOrking at a kniﬁing fac’rory. We were paicl
lowenr wages than other compav‘able facfov‘ies.
Sometimes, there was no wovk to do at the
factory. We asked if they could let us work in
other fac’rov*ies oluw*ing those perioc’s but ’r[/\ey
not not let us. So we decided to propose our

demands to the employew.”

“What were they?”

“We asked for two things. First, within seven
days the employer had to raise our wage fov‘
every dozen items we made. Second, during
the idle period, +|/\ey had to pay an extra 20

baht per person fow our lunch.”
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“Did they agree to your demands?’

“No. But they oﬁev‘ed somefl'\ing else.
They told us they couldn’t aﬁorcl what
we had asked, but they could pay the
minimum wage, under the condition
that they would no longer provide us
the factory's housing and we had to
move out. Tl/\ey would also cancel

other benefi’rs too.”
“Did you accept that?”

"Of course. We moved out of the
factory housing.”

“And what happened aﬁerwawds?”

"T:l'\ey let us continue wov‘king. But this
time, they had us sign in when we
came to work although they didn't give
us any assignments. And after one

month, we got fired.”

“Tired? Just like that?”

"A Piece of Justice.

“Veah. They put up a notice about it

Jt said we were fired because we
didn’t fo”ow the employer’s ovder and
had caused damage to the company.
There werve 4-5 othenr a”egaﬁons but

J cannot remember what they were.”
“What did you do?”

“We had to leave the job. yl\ﬁev* that
72 of us got +oge'l'lf\ev*, and we voted
five people as leaders. Then we

agv‘eecl to go get advice ]Cv‘om YQMV\Q
Chi Oo”

“What kind of advice?”

“Mainly about our labor riglz\’rs. So we
learned more about what we are
entitled to, and which of ounr rig[qfs had
been violated. We also learned that
we could demand the umpaicl wages

from the employer.”

“That sounds great. But how could
you do Hf\af.”
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“Tirst of all, we went to Oﬁice of
Labour Protection and Welfav*e.
Theve, the oﬁicial told us we needed
to fi” in the KorRonr 7 form, and H/\ey
did this fov* us. Aﬁer Jrl/\a’r, ’rlf\ey made
an appointment fow us to revisit and
fi” in another document called KorRor
3 form.”

“What arve these documents?”

“They are the documents that register
our personal information and the
details of our case. So it is necessary
to try to accurately remember when
we started with this factory and how
much the total payment owed was.
YOM need to know how much the
employer had already paid and the

amount of money l'\e stll owes you.”

“Sounds complica’red. How did you

calculate the uw\paid amounte”

“T¥'s not that hard. Vou can calculate
the total owed using the oﬁcicial
minimum wage. Then you subtract
what the employer has already paid
and you’” get the exact amount of
unpaid money you should get.”

“What did you have to do after filling

these fo rmse’

“We waited for the response from the
Office of Labour Protection and
Welfav‘e, whether Jr[/\ey would ordenr
the employev‘ to pay us and how

much.”
“How |on9 did that take?”

“TIn our case, it took around three
months. The employew was ordered

to pay us.”

"A Piece of Justice."

“Did they pay immediately?”

“No. They said they couldn’t afford it
right away, and asked to delay the

payment fov* six weeks.”

“And you got the v‘equesfed amount,
v*iglr\’r?”

“No. We were paid less than that. But
s better than getting V\o’rlf\ing.”

“How much did you 96"’?”
“J got around 20,000 baht.”

“Did the others get the same amount

of money?”

“No. Jt depends on the pev‘iocl of

employment for each worker.”
ploy

“Wevre there any problems during the

time you were waiting for the resulte”

“Of course there were. Jt was hard
to find a new job because the employer
told other fac’rov*ies notto hire us. _[j'\ey
also sent someone to threaten us into

dwopping the claim.”
“How did you deal with thate”

“We had made up ounr mind so we
didn't give up. That way Hf\ey would
learn that they can no longev‘ take

advantage of us.”
“Were there any other problems?”

“Ves. Some of us who did not have a
work permit had to be very careful
and avoid getting arrested by the
police. Otherwise, ’rl/\ey would be sent
back to Burma.”
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“That's terrible.”

“Ttis. J think this is also an issue that
needs to be solved. For example, the
depori'a’rion should be on hold, until
the trial is finished.”

”Riglf\’r, but how can we fix thate”

“T think if we all stick fogef'r\ev* and
are relentless in our demands, it will

evenh/\a”y worlk.”

“Js there anything else that you would

like to share with us?”

“Beyond our victory and the payment
we finally received, another important
aspect of my experience was wov*king
with my coworkers to fight for our
v*iglm‘s. J also learned about what my
labor v‘igl/\’rs are, which is important to
me. J will never forget what J learned
and J will keep ’re”ing other workers
about their rights.”

16 No Migrant Worker is legal

“As ’rocla)_/ is the Jnternational
Migrants Day, could you say

somefl'\ing about 2’

“Jtis an important day, certainly. Jt
how the

recognizes the importance of migrant

shows whole world
labor. However, everyday is our day.
We must |<ee|o in mind that labor
rights are ours. To fully enjoy them,
we have to protect our own rights. No

one else can do that fov* us. Do you

agree with me?”
“Veah!” shouted all the workers.

“Do you agree with me?”

“Veah!” The workers cheered again
even louder. Cach of them was in
great spirits and felf determined to
protect and exercise their rigl/\’rs to the
best of their abilHy.
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